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SECTION | - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when
reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this Letter of
Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/ prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

Unless otherwise specified, the capitalized terms used in this Letter of Offer shall have the meaning as defined
hereunder. References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation,
act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any
reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that
provision.

The words and expressions used in this Letter of Offer but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent applicable,
the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Listing
Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, terms used in "Statement of Special Tax Benefits” and "Financial Information” beginning on pages
51 and 68 respectively, shall have the meaning given to such terms in such sections.

General Terms

Description
Unless the context otherwise requires, indicates or implies or unless otherwise
specified, our Company, DSJ Keep Learning Limited, a company incorporated
in India under the Companies Act, 1956 and currently operating under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered and corporate office
at 419-A, Arun Chambers, 4" Floor, Taredo, Mumbai City, Mumbai,
Maharashtra - 400034, India.

Term

"Company", "our Company",
"the Company", "the Issuer",
HWeH HourH HusH OI. HDSJH

Company Related Terms

Term Description

Articles of Association or The articles of association of our Company, as amended from time to time
Articles

Audit Committee The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s audit

committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013

The audited financial statements of our Company as at and for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023 (along with comparative financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2022) prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, which comprises the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2023 (along with comparative balance sheet as at March 31, 2022)
and the statement of profit and loss, including other comprehensive income,
the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the years
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

The board of directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee
thereof, as appointed from time to time

The chief financial officer of our Company, namely, Shrikant Ramasawmi
Chilveri

Audited Financial Statements

Board/ Board of Directors/
Directors
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Equity Shareholders
Equity Shares
Executive Director

The company secretary and compliance officer of our Company, namely,
Jaiprakash Laxmandas Gangwani

Holders of Equity Share(s), from time to time

Equity shares of face value of X1/- each of our Company

Whole-time Director/ Executive Director on our Board



Financial Statements Our Audited Financial Statements together with our Limited Reviewed
Financial Results.
Independent Director(s) Independent Directors on the Board, who are eligible to be appointed as

Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI Listing Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, please
refer to "Qur Management" beginning on page 64.

Key Managerial Personnel The key managerial personnel of our Company as per the definition provided
in Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Limited Reviewed Financial The limited reviewed unaudited financial results for the nine-month period

Results ended December 31, 2023, prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
and SEBI Listing Regulations. For details, see "Financial Information" on
page 68.

Materiality Policy A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) for

the purpose of disclosure of the same in this Letter of Offer

Memorandum of Association/ The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to
MoA time
Nomination and Remuneration The committee of the Board of directors reconstituted as our Company’s

Committee nomination and remuneration committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013

Non-Executive Director(s) Non-executive non-independent director of our Company. For details, see
"Our Management" on page 64.

Promoter Group The individuals and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company
determined in accordance with Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations

Promoters The promoters of our Company, namely, New Bonanza Impex Private
Limited, Sanjay Vijaysingh Padode, Rajesh Vijay Padode and Pratap Vijay
Padode

Registered Office Registered office of our Company at 419-A, Arun Chambers, 4™ Floor,

Tardeo, Mumbai City, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400034, India
Registrar of Companies/ RoC  The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai situated at 100, Everest, Marine Drive,
Mumbai — 400 002

Rights Issue Committee The committee of our Board constituted for purposes of the Issue and
incidental matters thereof
Senior Management Senior management personnel of our Company determined in accordance with

Regulation 2(1) (bbbb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and as described in
"Our Management" beginning on page 64.

Statutory Auditors The current statutory auditors of our Company, are, M/s Jayesh Dadia &
Associates LLP

Stakeholders' Relationship Stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Board constituted in accordance

Committee with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations

Issue Related Terms

Abridged Letter of Offer/ Abridged letter of offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with

ALOF respect to the Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013

Additional Rights Equity The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the

Shares Rights Entitlement

Allotment/ Allot/ Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue

Allotted

Allotment Account Bank(s) Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an
issue and with whom the Allotment Accounts will be opened, in this case being,
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited



Term
Allotment Account(s)

Allotment Advice

Allotment Date / Date of
Allotment
Allotment/Allot/Allotted
Allottee(s)

Applicant(s)/ Investors

Application

Application Form

Application Money

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount or ASBA

ASBA Account

ASBA Applicant/ ASBA
Investor(s)
Banker(s) to the Issue

Banker to the Issue
Agreement

Basis of Allotment

Controlling Branches
/Controlling Branches of the
SCSBs

Demographic Details

Designated Branches

Designated Stock Exchange
Draft Letter of Offer or
DLOF

Description

The account(s) to be opened with the Banker(s) to this Issue, into which the
amounts blocked by Application Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA
Account, with respect to successful Applicants will be transferred on the
Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
The note or advice or intimation of Allotment, sent to each successful Investor
who has been or is to be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares after approval of
the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange

Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue

Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue

Person(s) to whom the Rights Equity Shares are Allotted pursuant to the Issue
Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to apply
or make an application for the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in
terms of this Letter of Offer

Application made through submission of the Application Form or plain paper
Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic
application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such
SCSBs) under the ASBA process to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares at
the Issue Price

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form or through the
website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA
process used by an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of Rights
Equity Shares

Amount payable at the time of Application, i.e., X1 per Rights Equity Share in
respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the Issue at the Issue Price
Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor/
Applicant(s) to make an application authorizing the SCSB to block the
Application Money in a the ASBA Account maintained with the SCSB
Account maintained with the SCSBs and specified in the Application Form or
the plain paper Application by the Applicant for blocking the amount
mentioned in the Application Form or the plain paper Application. in case of
Eligible Equity Shareholders, as the case may be.

Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to subscribe to the Issue through
ASBA process

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank, the Allotment Account Bank and
Refund Bank, in this case being Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Agreement dated May 13, 2024 entered into by and amongst our Company,
the Registrar to the Issue and the Banker(s) to the Issue for collection of the
Application Money from Applicants/Investors making an application for the
Rights Equity Shares.

The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful
Applicants in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under this
Issue, as described in "Terms of the Issue" beginning on 145

Such branches of the SCSBs which co-ordinate with the Registrar to the Issue
and the Stock Exchanges, a list of which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Details of Investors including the Investor’s address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID,
bank account details and occupation, where applicable

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form or the
plain paper application, as the case may be, used by the ASBA Investors and
a list of which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
BSE Limited

The draft letter of offer dated February 20, 2024 filed with the Stock
Exchanges in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations



http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Term

Eligible Equity
Shareholder(s)

Equity Shareholder(s)
/Shareholders

Escrow Account

Escrow Collection Bank

FPIs

Fraudulent Borrower

IEPF

Investor(s)

ISIN
Issue / Rights Issue

Issue Closing Date

Issue Materials

Issue Opening Date
Issue Period

Issue Price

Issue Proceeds or Gross
Proceeds

Issue Size

Letter of Offer

Listing Agreement

Multiple Application Forms

Description

Existing Equity Shareholders of our Company as on the Record Date. Please
note that the investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude certain
overseas shareholders. For further details, see "Nofice to Investors" beginning
on page 10.

Holder(s) of the Equity Shares of our Company

One or more no-lien and non-interest-bearing accounts with the Escrow
Collection Bank(s) for the purposes of collecting the Application Money from
resident investors — eligible equity shareholders as on record date making an
Application through the ASBA facility

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an
issue and with whom Escrow Account(s) will be opened, in this case being
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited.

Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a fraudulent borrower
by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act,
2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on fraudulent
borrower issued by RBI as defined under Regulations 2(1)(1ll) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations

Investor Education and Protection Fund

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and / or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to apply
or make an application for the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of
this Letter of Offer.

International securities identification number i.e., INE055C01020

Issue of up to 6,81,24,036 Equity Shares of face value of X1 each of our
Company for cash at a price of X1 per Rights Equity Share aggregating to
%681.24 Lakhs on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our
Company in the ratio of 7 Rights Equity Shares for every 9 Equity Shares held
by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company on the Record Date i.e.
May 14, 2024

June 06, 2024

Collectively, the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter and any other
material relating to the Issue

May 29, 2024

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date,
inclusive of both days, during which Applicants can submit their Applications,
in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

1 per Equity Share

The gross proceeds raised through the Issue

The issue of up to 6,81,24,036 Rights Equity Shares for cash at a price of X1
per Rights Equity Share aggregating to ¥681.24 lakhs”

*Assuming full subscription

This final letter of offer dated May 13, 2024 filed with the Stock Exchanges
and submitted with SEBI for information and dissemination on the SEBI’s
website

The listing agreement entered into between our Company and the Stock
Exchanges in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity
Shareholder/Renouncee in respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their
demat account. However, supplementary applications in relation to further
Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights Entitlement will not be
treated as multiple application



Term
Net Proceeds

Non-Institutional Investors

Offer Document
Off Market Renunciation

On Market Renunciation

Qualified Institutional Buyers
or QIBs

Record Date

Refund Bank(s)

Registrar Agreement
Registrar to the Issue /
Registrar to the

Company/Registrar
Renouncee(s)

Renunciation Period

Retail Individual
Bidders(s)/Retail Individual
Investor(s)/ RII(s)/RIB(s)

RE ISIN
Rights Entitlement Letter

Rights Entitlement(s)

Rights Equity Shares

Description

Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, please refer
to "Objects of the Issue" beginning on page 45.

An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional
Buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
Means Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by
transferring them through off-market transfer through a Depository Participant
in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Master Circular and the circulars issued
by the Depositories, from time to time, and other applicable laws

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading
them over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a
registered stockbroker in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Master Circular and
the circulars issued by the Stock Exchanges, from time to time, and other
applicable laws, on or before June 03, 2024

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Eligible Equity
Shareholders eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares, being May 14, 2024
The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened,
in this case being Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Agreement dated January 16, 2024 between our Company and the Registrar
to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar
to the Issue pertaining to this Issue.

Link Intime India Private Limited situated at C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli West Mumbai-400083, Mumbai.

Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity
Shareholders on renunciation in accordance with the SEBI master circular
bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023
The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights
Entitlements which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period
shall close on June 03, 2024 in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible
Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-
market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are
credited to the demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing
Date

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through Karta) who has
applied for Rights Equity Shares and whose Application Money is not more
than 22,00,000 in the Issue as defined under Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations

ISIN for Rights Entitlement i.e. INE055C20012

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity
Shareholders.

Number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled
to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity
Shareholder on the Record Date, in this case being 7 Equity Shares for every
9 Equity Shares held by an Eligible Equity Shareholder, on the Record Date,
excluding any fractional entitlements.

The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN: INE055C20012 will be credited
to the respective demat account of Eligible Equity Shareholder before the Issue
Opening Date, against the Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity
Shareholders as on the Record Date

Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue.



Self-Certified Syndicate Banks Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which acts as a banker to

/SCSB(s) the Issue and which offers the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is available
at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=ye
s&int mId=34

Stock Exchanges The stock exchanges where the Equity Shares of our Company are presently
listed, being BSE and NSE
Transfer Date The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will

be transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful
Applications, upon finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with
the Designated Stock Exchange

Wilful Defaulter Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013)
or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters
issued by RBI

Working Day(s) In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day
means all days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business.
Further, in respect of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in
Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore, the time period between the Issue
Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, working
day means all trading days of the Stock Exchanges, excluding Sundays and
bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI

Business and Industry Related Terms

AAC Alternative Academic Calendar

Al Artificial Intelligence

ATL Atal Tinkering Labs

BITSoM BITS School of Management

B2B Business to Business

CAC Customer Acquisition Cost

DoSE&L Department of School Education and Literacy
EQUIP Education Quality Upgradation and Inclusion Programme
FtN Foundational Literacy and Numeracy

GER Gross Enrollment Ratio

ICT Information And Communication Technology

IISc Indian Institute of Science

IITs Indian Institutes of Technology

kOS keeplearningOS

LMS Learning Management Systems

LATAM Countries in Latin America

ML Machine learning

NCRI National Council of Rural Institutes

NDEAR National Digital Education Architecture

NEFT National Education Technology Forum

NEP New Education Policy

NP-NPSE National Programme of Nutritional Support to Primary Education
MGNF Mahatma Gandhi National Fellowship

OPM Online Program Management

PMKVY Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana

QIA Qatar Investment Authority

RISE Revitalising Infrastructure and System in Education
RUSA Rashtriya Uchchatar Shiksha Abhiyan
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RTE Right to Education

RMSA Rashtriya Madhyamik Shiksha Abhiyan
SIS Student Information Systems

UEA University of East Anglia

Conventional and General Terms/Abbreviations

%, Rs., Rupees or INR Indian Rupees

AIF(s) Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

AGM Annual General Meeting

AS or Accounting Accounting standards issued by the ICAI

Standards

AY Assessment year

BSE BSE Limited

Category I AIF AlFs who are registered as "Category I Alternative Investment Funds" under the
SEBI AIF Regulations

Category I FPIs FPIs who are registered as "Category I foreign portfolio investors" under the
SEBI FPI Regulations

CAGR Compound annual growth rate

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Central Government Central Government of India

Civil Code Code of Civil Procedure, 1908

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CIN Corporate identity number

Companies Act, 1956 Erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 along with the rules made thereunder

Companies Act, 2013/ Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder

Companies Act

COVID-19 A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World
Health Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020

CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

Depositories Act Depositories Act, 1996

Depository A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 1996
Depository Participant/ DP A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

DIN Director Identification Number

DPID Depository Participant’s identification

DPIIT Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce
and Industry, Government of India (formerly Department of Industrial Policy and
Promotion)

DTAA Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement

EBITDA Profit/(loss) after tax for the year adjusted for income tax expense, finance costs,
depreciation and amortization expense, as presented in the statement of profit and
loss

EGM Extraordinary general meeting

EPS Earnings per Equity Share

FCNR Account Foreign currency non-resident account

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FDI Circular 2020 Consolidated FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020, issued by the Department for

Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, together with rules and regulations
thereunder



Term

FEMA Rules

Financial Year, Fiscal Year
or Fiscal/FY

FIR

FPIs

Fugitive Economic Offender

FVCI

GAAP

GDP

Gol or Government
GST

HUF

IBC/ Bankruptcy Code
ICAI

Income Tax Act

Ind AS

IFRS
Insider Trading Regulations

ITAT
KYC
LTV
MCA
Mutual Fund

Net Asset Value per Equity
Share or NAV per Equity
Share

Net Worth

NBFC

NPAC(s)

NRE Account

NRI

NRO Account
NSE

NSDL

OCB or Overseas
Corporate Body

PAN

PAT

QP

RBI

RBI Act
Regulation S

Description

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise
stated

First information report

Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of
the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018

Foreign venture capital investors as defined under and registered with SEBI
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital
Investors) Regulations, 2000 registered with SEBI

Generally accepted accounting principles

Gross domestic product

Government of India

Goods and Service Tax

Hindu Undivided Family

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Income-tax Act, 1961

Indian accounting standards as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended

International Financial Reporting Standards

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

Know your customer

Loan to value ratio

Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Net Worth/ Number of Equity shares subscribed and fully paid outstanding as at
March 31

Aggregate of Equity Share capital and other equity

Non-banking financial companies

Non-performing assets

Non-resident external account

A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India and shall have the same
meaning as ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange Management
(Deposit) Regulations, 2016

Non-resident ordinary account

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

National Securities Depository Limited

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in
which not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly
or indirectly and which was in existence on October 03, 2003, and immediately
before such date had taken benefits under the general permission granted to
OCBs under FEMA

Permanent account number

Profit after tax

Qualified purchaser as defined in the U.S. Investment Company Act

Reserve Bank of India

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act



Term Description

RTGS Real time gross settlement

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012, as amended

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)

Regulations, 2019, as amended

SEBI ICDR Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended

SEBI Listing Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

SEBI Rights Issue Circulars SEBI circular bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated
June 21, 2023, along with the any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by

SEBI in this regard

Stock Exchanges BSE and NSE

STT Securities transaction tax

Supreme Court Supreme Court of India

TAT Turnaround time

Takeover Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended

Total Borrowings Aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and

subordinated liabilities

U.S.$, USD or U.S. dollar ~ United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America

U.S. Investment Company  Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

Act

U.S. Person U.S. persons as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act or acting
for the account or benefit of U.S. persons (not relying on Rule 902(k)(1)(viii)(B)
or Rule 902(k)(2)(i) of Regulation S)

USA, U.S. or United States United States of America

U.S. SEC U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

U.S. Securities Act or U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Securities Act

VCF Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities

and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the
SEBI AIF Regulations, as the case may be

The words and expressions used but not defined herein shall have the same meaning as is assigned to such terms
under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act or the rules and
regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in "Statement of Possible Special Tax
Benefits", "Outstanding Litigations and Defaults" and "Financial Information" on pages 51, 135, and 68,
respectively, shall have the meanings given to such terms in these respective sections.



NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form,
Rights Entitlement Letter and other issue materials and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares
on a right basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing
in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, Application Form or other issue material may come are required to inform themselves about and
observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders
and will send/dispatch the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form,
Rights Entitlement and other issue material Letter through email and courier only to Eligible Equity Shareholders
who have a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company. This Letter of
Offer will be provided, through email and courier, by the Registrar, on behalf of our Company, to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions
where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case
who make a request in this regard. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail
address, the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, and the Application Form
will be sent only to their valid e-mail address, and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided
their e-mail address, then the Issue materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian
addresses provided by them. Investors can also access the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, our Company and the Stock
Exchanges.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that
purpose, except that this Letter of Offer is being filed with Stock Exchanges for observations. Accordingly, the
Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Draft Letter
of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in
connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance
with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer
or the Abridged Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by anyone in those
jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, the Draft Letter of
Offer, this Letter of Offer, and the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only
and should not be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or
redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, or the
Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares
or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, or the Abridged Letter
of Offer to any person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations.
If the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form is received by
any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights
Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer or the Application Form. Envelopes containing an Application Form should not be dispatched
from any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Equity Shares
in this Issue must provide an Indian address.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in
the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to
acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
prevailing in his jurisdiction and India, without the requirement for our Company or our affiliates to make any
filing or registration (other than in India). In addition, each purchaser of Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity
Shares will be deemed to make the representations, warranties, acknowledgments and agreements set forth in
"Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures" on page 138. Our Company, in consultation with the Registrar,
or any other person acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid
where they believe that Application Form is incomplete, or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe
applicable legal or regulatory requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares
or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Neither the delivery of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application

Form and Rights Entitlement Letter and other issue material nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof
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or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the
date of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form
and Rights Entitlement Letter or the date of such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL,
FINANCIAL OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO
ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF
THE ISSUE OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH
INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX
ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE
ISSUE OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. IN ADDITION, NEITHER
OUR COMPANY ARE MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF
THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER
UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by any regulatory
authority, nor has any regulatory authority passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the Rights
Entitlements, the Rights Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Letter of Offer. Any representation to
the contrary is a criminal offence in certain jurisdictions. The Issue Materials are supplied to you solely for your
information and may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or
published, in whole or in part, for any purpose.
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NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United
States Securities Act, 1933, as amended ("Securities Act") or the securities laws of any state of the United States
and may not be offered, sold or resold or otherwise transferred within the United States of America or the
territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction not subject to, or exempt from, the
registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. Accordingly, the Rights
Entitlements (including their credit) and the equity shares are only being offered and sold outside the United States
in offshore transactions in reliance on regulations under the U.S. Securities Act ("Regulation S") and in
compliance with the applicable laws of the jurisdiction where those offers and sales occur. The offering to which
this Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy or
transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion of the
Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering of securities in
the United States. Accordingly, any documents relating to the issue should not be forwarded to or transmitted in
or into the United States at any time.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation or purchase
of the Equity Shares and/ or Rights Entitlements from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be,
or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf has reason to believe is in the United States when the
buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be
postmarked in the United States, electronically transmitted from the United States or otherwise dispatched from
the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer of securities under this Letter
of Offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in
registered form must provide an address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making
the Issue on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged
Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have an address in India. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity
Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted, and agreed that, (i) it is not, and that at the time
of subscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and
(if) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorized to acquire the Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or
our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address
is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that the Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of
such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be
bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

The Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any other federal or any state securities commission in the United States
or any other US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits
of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Letter of Offer.

Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States and may be a criminal offence in
certain other jurisdictions.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants/ Investors. Our Company is not liable for any
amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this
Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of
Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under the applicable laws or regulations.
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THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR
COMPANY OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR
DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

All references to "India" contained in this Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and
possessions and all references herein to the "Government"”, "Indian Government", "Gol", Central Government"
or the "State Government" are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the 'US' or
'U.S." or the 'United States' are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions. Unless otherwise
specified, any time mentioned in this Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time ("IST"). Unless indicated
otherwise, all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever
applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this
Letter of Offer.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this
Letter of Offer has been derived from our Audited Financial Statements. For details, please see "Financial
Information” beginning on page 68 of this Letter of Offer. Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1
and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year, unless stated
otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

The Government of India has adopted the Indian accounting standards ("Ind AS"), which are converged with the
International Financial Reporting Standards of the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS") and
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended (the "Ind AS Rules™). The Financial Statements of our Company have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS and recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34 prescribed under
the Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations. Our Company
publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting
practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited.

Unless otherwise stated, the financial numbers stated in this Letter of Offer are derived from the Audited Financial
Statements and /or the Limited Reviewed Financial Information.

The Audited Financial Statements of our Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as prescribed
under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the Ind AS Rules and other the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act and in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in
Company Prospectuses (Revised), 2019, issued by the ICAI. Our Company publishes its financial statements in
Rupees in Lakhs.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due
to rounding off and unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Our
Company has presented all numerical information in the Financial Statements in whole numbers and in this Letter
of Offer in "lakh" units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to represent in lakh. One
lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of
the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those differences
or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult your
own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which
the financial information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the
Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Letter For further information, see "Financial Information"
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beginning on page 68.

Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded
off adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals.
However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to
other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off
to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or
percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the
numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or
row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

. "Rupees” or "3" or "INR" or "Rs." are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India;
and
. "USD" or "US$" or "$" are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America.

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Letter of Offer in "lakh™ or "Lac" units or in
whole numbers. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000. All the numbers in the
document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to present in
lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in "Risk Factors", "Our Business", "Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operation" beginning on pages 21, 59, and 131 and elsewhere,
unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated based on our Financial Information.

Exchange Rates

This Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been
presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a
representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any
particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:

(in %)
Name of the Currency As of December 31, As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2022
2023
United States Dollar 83.12 82.22 75.81

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and www.fbil.org.in)
Note: In case March 31 of any of the respective years / period or December 31 is a public holiday, the previous Working Day not being a
public holiday has been considered.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from
publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from
publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable, but the accuracy and completeness of
such information are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured. This information is subject to change
and cannot be verified with certainty due to limits on the availability and reliability of the raw data and other
limitations and uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey. Although we believe the industry and market data
used in this Letter of Offer is reliable, it has not been independently verified by us. The data used in these sources
may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be
comparable. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on
various factors, including those discussed in "Risk Factors" beginning on page 21 of this Letter of Offer.
Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such information.
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The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the
reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are
no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is
conducted, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

In this Letter of Offer, we have included statements, which contain words or phrases such as "will", "may", "aim",

"is likely to result", "believe", "expect”, "continue", "anticipate", "estimate”, "intend", "plan”, "contemplate",
"seek to", "future", "objective", "goal", "project", "should", "pursue" and similar expressions or variations of such
expressions, that are "forward-looking statements". However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying

forward-looking statements.

All statements regarding our Company's expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and
prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our
Company's business strategy, planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any
financial or operating projections or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this Letter of Offer
that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by
our Company or any third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties,
assumptions and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to
be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements or other projections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward looking-statements due to risks or
uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to
the industry in which we operate and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our
strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets, technological changes, our
exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and globally, which have an impact
on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation,
unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices,
performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, the incidence
of natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
from our Company's expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

. Failure to develop and innovate new products and services

. Inability to maintain our existing clients or attract new clients

o Any adverse changes in central or state government policies;

. Our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, technological changes,
our exposure to market risks that have an impact on our business activities or investments;

. Our ability to maintain or improve our technology infrastructure;

o Any adverse development that may affect our operations; and

. General, political, economic, social and business conditions in India and other global markets.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations,
please refer to "Risk Factors”, "Our Business" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Position and Results of Operations” beginning on pages 21, 59 and 131 respectively. By their nature, certain
market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the
future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be
correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance.

Forward looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Letter of Offer and
are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on the management's beliefs and
assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although, we believe the assumptions
upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to
be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our
Company, our Directors, our Promoters, nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any obligation to
update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.
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In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material
developments from the date of this Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading permissions
from the Stock Exchanges.
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SUMMARY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Letter of Offer and is not exhaustive,
nor does it purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Letter of Offer or all details relevant to the
prospective investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the
more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Letter of Offer, including, "Risk Factors", "Objects of the
Issue”, "Our Business" and "Outstanding Litigation and Defaults" beginning on pages 21, 45, 59 and 135
respectively.

Primary Business of our Company

DSJKL is an education services company, that primarily caters to providing technology services to universities
globally. As of now, our service portfolio includes

1. Student Recruitment Services
a. Provide people, process, and technology to higher-ed institutions to efficiently outsource their
whole student recruitment.
2. Technology Management
a. A SaaS platform to manage all academic and institutional operations for an institution.
3. Program Delivery & Management Services
a. Provide people, process, and technology to higher-ed institutions to enable them to take their
offline degree programs, online.

Objects of the Issue

The details of the Net Proceeds are summarized in the table below:
(in T Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds from the Issue” 681.24
Less: Issue related expenses 59.64
Net Proceeds of the Issue 621.60

#assuming full subscription and allotment

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table:
(in T Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Repayment or prepayment, in full or in part, of unsecured Loan

availed by our Company from Promoter Group Entity 190.00
To meet the cost of software development charges 210.00
To meet the cost of program delivery & management 190.00
General Corporate Purposes” 31.60
Total Net Proceeds 621.60

#Subject to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares. The amount utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the
Proceeds of the Rights Issue.

For further details, please see chapter titled "Objects of the Issue™ beginning on page 45.
Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group shareholders

Except for Pratap Vijay Padode, our Promoters, Sanjay Vijaysingh Padode, New Bonanza Impex Private Limited
and other Promoter Group entities vide their letters dated January 13, 2024, have confirmed their intention to
subscribe to the portion of their Rights Entitlement, jointly and/or severally and not to renounce their Rights
Entitlements except to the extent of renunciation within themselves and our Promoter Rajesh Vijay Padode vide
his letter dated April 12, 2024, has confirmed his intention that he may partially subscribe to the portion of his
Rights Entitlement. Further, one of the member of our Promoter Group namely, DSJ Finance Corporation Limited
is under liquidation since 1998 and thus we are not in a position to obtain its intention regarding subscription to
the Rights Issue.
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Our Promoters and Promoter Group reserve the Right to apply for, and subscribe to, additional Rights Equity
Shares, including subscribing to the unsubscribed portion (if any) of the Issue, subject to compliance with the
minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above its Rights
Entitlements shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company and shall be in compliance
with the SEBI SAST Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements under the
Applicable Law.

Outstanding litigation and defaults

A summary of the outstanding material legal proceedings involving our Company as on the date of this Letter of
Offer is set forth in the table below:

Against the - - - - 1" 198.91
Company

By the - - - - - -
Company

“Hon'ble Bombay High Court, in the case bearing number WP/722/2011, held that the reassessment proceeding is bad in law and accordingly,
quashed the reassessment. For further details, please see "Outstanding Litigation and Defaults" on page 135.

Risk Factors

For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in Equity
Shares of the Company, material litigations which impact the business of the Company and other economic factors
please refer to "Risk Factors" beginning on page 21.

Contingent Liabilities

For details regarding our contingent liabilities, please see "Audited Financial Statements — Note 27 - Contingent
liabilities" on page no 115.

Related Party Transactions

For details regarding our related party transactions, please see "Audited Financial Statements" and "Limited
Reviewed Financial Information on pages 116 and 67, respectively.

Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other than cash.
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
disclosed in this Letter of Olffer, including the risks and uncertainties described below and the "Financial
Statements" on page 68, before making an investment in the Equity Shares. The risks described below are not the
only risks relevant to us or the Equity Shares or the industry in which we currently operate. Additional risks and
uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business, cash
flows, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. In order to obtain a complete understanding about
us, investors should read this section in conjunction with "Our Business", "Industry Overview" and
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations" beginning on pages
59, 53 and 131, respectively, as well as the other financial information included in this Letter of Offer. If any of
the risks described below, or other risks that are not currently known or are currently deemed immaterial actually
occur, our business, cash flows, prospects, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely
affected, the trading price of the Equity Shares could decline, and investors may lose all or part of the value of
their investment. The financial and other related implications of the risk factors, wherever quantifiable, have been
disclosed in the risk factors mentioned below.

However, there are certain risk factors where the financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore, cannot be
disclosed in such risk factors. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular
consequences to you of an investment in this Issue. The following factors have been considered for determining
the materiality: (1) some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively, (2) some
events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively,; and (3) some events may not be material
at present but may have material impact in future.

This Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain
factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer. Any potential investor
in, and purchaser of, the Equity Shares should pay particular attention to the fact that our Company is an Indian
company and is subject to a legal and regulatory environment which, in some respects, may be different from that
which prevails in other countries. For further information, please refer to "Forward Looking Statements"
beginning on page 17.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires otherwise, the financial information included herein is based
on our Audited Financial Statements and Unaudited Financial Results included in this Letter of Offer. For further
information, please refer to "Financial Statements" beginning on page 68. In this section, unless the context
requires otherwise, any reference to "we", "us" or "our" refers to DSJ Keep Learning Limited (Formerly known
as 'DSJ Communications Limited’).

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

L Our business vertical of Student Recruitment Services is linked to the academic cycle and is, therefore,
cyclical in nature. Qur revenues may vary in some quarters as compared to the other quarters.

Our business and revenues may fluctuates based on the academic cycle of educational institutions i.e.
admission period which is first quarter i.e. from April to June. Depending on the entrance, we may
recognize lower revenues in certain months or quarters of the year. In terms of our expenses, many of
them are fixed in nature and we incur them throughout the year, though some expenses may increase
during admission period. Since our revenues and expenses fluctuate quarter-to-quarter, it may result in
fluctuation of profitability of our Company in some quarters.

2. If we fail to develop and innovate new products and services to serve our existing client or acquire
new client, our business, operating results, financial performance, cash flows and prospects may be
materially and adversely affected.

Presently, our Company is engaged in providing comprehensive education services. The attractiveness

of our services depends on our ability to innovate as we believe that we provide a comprehensive suite
of products and services such as Student Recruitment, Technology platform and Online Programs for
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education. To remain competitive, we must continue to develop and enhance our offerings. We must also
continue to enhance and improve our analytical capabilities, platform interface and technology
infrastructure. New technologies and innovation may be or may become better or more attractive to
current or prospective customers than our products in one or more ways. Many current or prospective
clients may find competing products more attractive if we do not keep pace with market innovation and
the clients may choose or switch to competing products even if we do our best to innovate and provide
superior services. If we fail to develop and innovate our technology-based expertise in a timely and
effective manner, our competitive edge and market share may be lost or we may face resistance from our
existing or potential clients. Consequently, our business, financial performance, cash flows and prospects
could be materially and adversely affected.

To grow our revenues and profitability, we constantly look to maintain our existing client base and
increase the number of new clients. While, in past, we have experienced growth in the number of new
clients, we cannot assure you that we will continue to achieve similar account growth rates in the future
in a timely manner or at all. The success of our business depends on our ability to anticipate, identify,
and respond promptly to evolving trends in customer expectations, needs and demands, and develop new/
differentiated products and services to meet these requirements. If we fail to consistently meet client
demands, adapt to evolving preferences and trends, or gain broader acceptance of our services, it could
adversely impact our business, financial condition, results of operations and the cash flows.

Some of our new initiatives may not perform as anticipated or commence on time or at all or may be
discontinued

We’re presently engaged in educational services and recently, have started a new initiative i.e. our
flagship technology product, keep learning OS (kOS). kOS is a SaaS platform for educational institutes
to automate the entire education system from admissions to results, time-table, faculty mapping,
announcements, project work, assignment submissions, etc. The test run of the kOS was successfully
done and from financial year 2022-23 the company started booking revenue from kOS. kOS now meets
the needs of 200+ administrators/faculty members and 2300+ students. We also propose to incorporate
the use of generative Al in the application. We intend to use a portion of the Net Proceeds toward hiring
technical specialist and to meet other expenses towards the kOS product. We may lack sufficient
expertise and experience in these initiatives, and this may impose additional strain on our resource. Due
to our limited experience in new initiatives, we may face unanticipated hurdles with respect to such new
initiatives.

The properties which we use for our business including our Registered Office have been taken on
lease basis.

All the properties from which we operate our business including our Registered Office are held on
leasehold basis. The lease is valid as on date. The lease periods for the properties expire at regular
intervals and we initiate the process of renewing such agreements. Our inability to renew or extend the
lease of the property may jeopardize our operations. Further, the renewal of the lease may be on
substantially higher lease rentals or onerous lease terms. Additionally, if the terms of the leasehold
interests expire, we may be unable to extend or renew these interests on economically viable terms or at
all, which could result in our inability to continue to operate on those properties. Further, any adverse
impact on the ownership rights of the landlords may impede our effective future operations. We cannot
assure you that alternative premises will be available at the same or similar costs or locations, in a timely
manner. This may have an adverse impact on our business, operations and revenues.

Any disruption in our information technology systems may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects.

We rely on our information technology systems in connection with our SaaS platform to manage all
academic and institutional operations for an institution, program delivery services and the general
running of our day-to-day business. As our operations grow and scope, we must continuously upgrade
our systems and infrastructure, while maintaining the reliability and integrity of our systems and
infrastructure in a cost-effective manner. Factors such as fire, power outages, telecommunications or
technical failures, disruption in internet infrastructure or access due to earthquakes, floods or other
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natural calamities or adverse weather conditions, acts of war or terrorism, computer viruses, sabotage,
break-ins and electronic intrusion attempts from external or internal sources, difficulties in linkages with
our students’ systems or educational institutions systems may cause system interruptions, delays, security
breaches or corruption or loss of critical data, and may prevent us from operating some or all our business
for a significant period of time, which could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, results
of operations and prospects.

We face competition from both organized players and unorganized players.

We operate in an extremely competitive market which has low barriers of entry and new competitors
may easily enter and compete in this market. We compete with both organized and unorganized players.
Further these unorganized entities offer their services at highly competitive prices, having a well-
established presence in their local markets. Further, any consolidation among the organized and/or
unorganized players in any region may increase their competitiveness and, therefore, have a material
adverse impact on our performance in the region.

We may not be able to renew, maintain or obtain the requisite permits and approvals in future and
this may affect our business and operations.

We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations, and permissions for operating our businesses.
Failure to renew, maintain or obtain required permits or approvals at the requisite time may result in
interruption of our operations and may have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and
results of the operations. Any failure to obtain or renew the required approvals, licenses, registrations or
permits, or any suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits that
have been or may be issued to us may impede our operations. We may need to apply for further approvals
in the future including renewal of approvals that may expire from time to time. There can be no assurance
that the relevant authorities will issue such permits or approvals in the timeframe anticipated or at all.

We have experienced negative cash flows in previous years / periods. Any operating losses or negative
cash flow in the future could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our Company had negative cash flows from our operating activities in Financial Year 2021-22. However,
for Financial year 2022-23 and for the financial period ending on September 30, 2023, the cash flow was
positive. The details of our flows is set out below.

Particulars As at September 30, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2023 2022

Net cash generated by / (used 19.39 62.57 (7.47)
in) operating activities
Net cash generated by / (used (3.77) (61.89) (36.03)
in) investing activities
Net cash generated from / (8.18) (15.17) 70.40
(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in 7.44 (14.49) 26.89
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.92 27.41 0.52
at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash 20.36 12.92 27.41
Equivalents at the end of
the year

Cash flow of a Company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and to make new investments without raising finance
from external resources. Any operating losses or negative cash flows could adversely affect our results
of operations and financial conditions. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flows, it may
adversely affect our business and financial operations.
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The net worth of the Company is negative.

The net worth of our Company is negative which means that our liabilities is greater than our assets.,
Although we are in process of expanding our business operations and our company financials have
become stronger in FY 2023 as compared to FY 2022, we cannot assure you that our net worth will be
turned positive in near future. However, if our net worth eroded further, it may adversely affect our
business, financial operations and may cast an uncertainty on our ability to continue operations.

A portion of Issue proceeds will be utilized by our Company for repayment of unsecured loan availed
by it from our Promoter.

One of the Objects of this Issue is to repay the unsecured loan availed by our Company from our
Promoter, New Bonanza Impex Private Limited ("NBIPL'). As on December 31, 2023, we have
outstanding unsecured loan aggregating to ¥ 191.22 lakhs from NBIPL. Out of the Issue proceeds, we
intend to utilize X190.00 lakhs for repayment of unsecured loan availed by our Company from our
Promoter. Further, NBIPL request letter dated January 24,2024 received from NBIPL, subject to the
successful completion of the Issue and receipt of necessary approvals (including the listing and trading
approval from the Stock Exchanges), our Company proposes to convert the outstanding amount of
unsecured Loan into equity and accordingly, to the extent of, the subscription by NBIPL to its entitlement
in the Rights issue and subscription to the unsubscribed portion of the rights issue, NBIPL will be issued
equity shares of our Company. Consequently, no proceeds from the Issue to such extent, would be
received by our Company and corresponding amount will get adjusted towards subscription of equity
shares in rights issue. For further details, please see the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning
on page 45.

We have entered into certain transactions with related parties. These transactions or any future
transactions with our related parties could potentially involve conflicts of interest.

We have entered into certain transactions with related parties with our Promoter, directors and other
related parties and may continue to do so in future. Our Company has entered into such transactions due
to easy proximity and quick execution. However, there is no assurance that we could not have obtained
better and more favourable terms than from transaction with related parties. Additionally, our company
believes that all our related party transactions have been conducted on an arm’s length basis and as per
the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, but we cannot provide
assurance that we could have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered with
third parties. Our Company may enter into such transactions in future also and we cannot assure that in
such events there would be no adverse effect on results of our operations, although going forward, all
related party transactions that we may enter will be subject to board or shareholder approval, as under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.

We may be unable to sufficiently obtain, maintain, protect, or enforce our intellectual property and
other proprietary rights.

We do not own our corporate logo and trademark is not registered in the name of the Company and our
Company has made application for registering the same. We cannot guarantee that such trademarks will
be registered in our name. Further, our unregistered intellectual property rights or claims thereto, will
now or in the future will be successfully protected or that our rights will not be opposed or otherwise
challenged. While we endeavour to ensure that we protect our intellectual property rights, there can be
no assurance that we will not face any intellectual property infringement claims brought by third parties.
Any claims of infringement, regardless of merit or resolution of such claims, could force us to incur
significant costs in responding to, defending and resolving such claims and may divert the efforts and
attention of our management away from our business. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could
result in unexpected time and expenses.

Our success depends upon our senior management team and skilled personnel and our ability to

attract and retain such persons. Any failure to attract and retain such personnel could have an adverse
impact on our business, financial conditions and result of operations.
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15.

We are highly dependent on our executive directors, our senior management, and our other key
managerial personnel for our business. Attracting and retaining talented professionals is key to our
business growth. Our business model is reliant on the efforts and initiatives of our senior level
management and our key managerial personnel. If one or more members of our senior management team
were to leave their present positions, it may be difficult to find adequate replacements and our business
could be adversely affected. In this regard, we cannot assure you that we will be able to retain our skilled
senior management or managerial personnel or continue to attract new talents in the future. Failure to
effectively manage labour or failure to ensure availability of sufficient labour could also affect the
business operations of the Company.

We have contingent liabilities, and our profitability could be adversely affected if any of these
contingent liabilities crystallizes.

Except as set out below, there were no claims against our Company not acknowledged as debt as on
March 31, 2023:

Income Tax Dues (A.Y. 1997-98) 45.68 lakhs

For further details on our contingent liabilities, see "Financial Information" on page 68. If any of these
contingent liabilities materialises, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely
affected.

Further, during the financial year 2020-2021, the Company has created a provision for doubtful advances
amounting to X 350 Lakhs as in the opinion of the Management the probability of recovery of the said
amount is low

There are certain outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company. Any adverse outcome in such
legal proceedings may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

There are certain outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company that are incidental to our
business and operations. These include, inter alia, proceedings before regulatory authorities. These are
pending at different levels of adjudication.

A summary of the outstanding material legal proceedings involving our Company as on the date of this
Letter of Offer is set forth in the table below:

Against the - - - - 1" 198.91
Company

By the - - - - - -
Company

* Hon'ble Bombay High Court, in the case bearing number WP/722/2011, held that the reassessment proceeding is bad in law
and accordingly, quashed the reassessment. For further details, please see "Outstanding Litigation and Defaults" on page 135.

Such legal proceedings could divert management time and attention and consume financial resources in
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their defence. A significant degree of judgment is required to assess our exposure in these proceedings
and determine the appropriate level of provisions, if any. There can be no assurance on the outcome of
such legal proceedings, notices and summons or that such matters will be adjudicated in our favour or
that the provisions we make will be adequate to cover all losses we may incur in such proceedings, or
that our actual liability will be as reflected in any provision that we have made in connection with any
such legal proceedings. If a significant number of these legal proceedings are finally determined against
us, our reputation, business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
and adversely affected.

For further details, please see "Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments" on page 135.

There have been certain instances of non-compliance with respect to certain regulatory filings of the
Company in the past. Consequently, we may be subject to regulatory actions and penalties, if any, for
any such non-compliance and our business, financial condition and reputation may be adversely
affected.

In past, our Company had availed certain financing facilities from certain financial institutions. Such
financing facilities were secured by way of hypothecation of movable assets/ mortgage of certain
immovable properties. As per the applicable provisions of applicable law, our Company had filed the
forms for creation of charge and as on date, such financing facilities have been paid in full. However, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs portal ("MCA") reflects charges in the name of the Company. The date of
Satisfaction of Charges has not been updated on MCA portal. Our Company had not filed forms relating
to satisfaction of charge. Our Company had made attempts to take necessary step to rectify the records.
With respect to certain Charges which are reflected on the MCA website, we are in the process of filling
satisfaction of charges, the Company has obtained no dues certificates from respective banks. Further,
some of the charges reflected on MCA website are very old and the Company has no records in relation
to the no dues certificate, Company is in the process to obtain no dues certificates from the respective
banks. However, as on date the charge satisfactions forms have not been filed. While no legal proceedings
or regulatory action has been initiated against us in relation to erroneous/non filings as of the date of this
Letter of Offer, we cannot assure you that such proceedings or regulatory actions will not be initiated
against us in the future in relation to such erroneous filings. We cannot assure you that any such
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or reputation.

Our funding requirements and proposed deployment of the Net Proceeds are based on management
estimates and have not been independently appraised and may be subject to change based on various
factors, some of which are beyond our control. Further, we may not be able to utilise the proceeds
from this Issue in a timely manner or at all.

Our funding requirements and deployment of the Net Proceeds are based on internal management
estimates and based on current market conditions and have not been appraised by any bank or financial
institution or other independent agency. Furthermore, in the absence of such independent appraisal, our
funding requirements may be subject to change based on various factors which are beyond our control.
For further details, see "Objects of the Issue" on page 45. Further, our funding requirements and the
deployment of the proceeds from this Issue are based on our current business plan and strategy and
therefore we may have to reconsider our estimates or business plans due to changes in underlying factors,
some of which are beyond our control, such as interest rate fluctuations, changes in input cost, and other
financial and operational factors. Accordingly, we may not be able to utilise the proceeds from this Issue
in the manner set out in this Letter of Offer in a timely manner or at all. Further, any deviation in
utilization of net proceeds will be as per the applicable laws.

All of the shareholding of our Promoter group is not dematerialised.

In accordance with SEBI Circular dated November 30, 2015, 100% of promoters and promoter group
shareholding must be in dematerialised form. However, equity shares appearing in the name of DSJ
Finance Corporation Limited, ("DSJ Finance") one of the entity falling under the Promoter Group, are
in physical form and are not dematerialized since DSJ Finance is under liquidation since 1998. Due to
the liquidation proceedings DSJ Finance Corporation Limited management is in control of the liquidator
and hence the process of dematerialization has not happened in term of SEBI Circular dated November
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30, 2015. Due to the liquidation proceedings DSJ Finance Corporation Limited management is in control
of the liquidator and hence the process of dematerialization has not happened in term of SEBI Circular
dated November 30, 2015.

The Company has not redeemed its preference shares, the statutory time limit for redemption is
overdue.

In past, Our Company had issued preference shares to DSJ Finance Corporation Limited. Pursuant to
section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Company ought to have redeemed the preference share of the Company but such preference shares have
not been redeemed due to reason that DSJ Finance Corporation Limited is under liquidation since 1998
and hence the legal formalities for redemption of preference shares could not be taken and processed till
date.

Our Promoter and Promoter Group will continue to retain significant shareholding in our Company
after the Issue, which will enable them to exercise significant control over us.

After the completion of the Issue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will continue to collectively own
a substantial portion of our issued Equity Shares. Pursuant to subscription of Equity Shares in the Issue,
in case public shareholders do not subscribe fully, the collective holding of our Promoters and Promoter
Group may increase above their current holdings. Our Promoters and Promoter Group will therefore
continue to have the ability to exercise a controlling influence over our business which will allow them
to vote together on certain matters in our general meetings. Accordingly, the interests of our Promoters
as our controlling shareholders may conflict with your interests and the interests of our other
shareholders. We cannot assure you that the Promoters will act to resolve any conflicts of interest in our
favour and any such conflict may adversely affect our ability to execute our business strategy or to
operate our business.

The Company may not be fully insured for business losses, which the Company might incur.

The Company has not procured any insurance coverage with respect to its business operations, key
managerial personnels and office premises. Such lack of insurance coverage could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Our Promoters and certain of our Directors have interests in our Company other than their normal
remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses.

Our promoters and certain directors may have vested interests in our company beyond regular
remuneration, benefits, and expense reimbursements. Promoters and directors holding equity shares may
take actions that could potentially conflict with the best interests of our company or those of minority
shareholders.

There have been certain instances of non-compliance with respect to maintenance of corporate
records of the Company in the past. Consequently, we may be subject to regulatory actions and
penalties, if any, for any such non-compliance and our business, financial condition and reputation
may be adversely affected.

Our Company endeavours to maintain the corporate record in the strict compliance with the Companies
Act, Secretarial Standards and other applicable laws. However, certain minutes of the Board meeting are
not maintained in the strict compliance with the secretarial standards. For instance, minutes dated 14th
February 2023 are not in compliance as per the secretarial standards as they are not paginated, and
Company had taken the necessary steps to rectify the Non Compliances. Further there has been delayed
filling of MGT-14, AOC-4 and SH-7 forms for which the Company paid the delayed filling fees and has
rectified the non-compliance. While no legal proceedings or regulatory action has been initiated against
us in relation erroneous filings as of the date of this Letter of Offer, we cannot assure you that such
proceedings or regulatory actions will not be initiated against us in the future in relation to such erroneous
filings. We cannot assure you that any such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or reputation.
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The deployment of funds is entirely at our discretion and as per the details mentioned in the chapter
titled "Objects of the Issue"

As the Issue size is not more than 10,000 lakhs, under Regulation 82 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations it
is not required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company, for overseeing the deployment
and utilization of funds raised through this Issue. Therefore, the deployment of the funds towards the
Objects of this Issue is entirely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring
by external independent agency. Our Board of Directors along with the Audit Committee will monitor
the utilization of Issue proceeds and shall have the flexibility in applying the proceeds of this Issue.
However, the management of our Company shall not have the power to alter the objects of this Issue
except with the approval of the Shareholders of the Company given by way of a special resolution in a
general meeting, in the manner specified in Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013. Additionally, the
dissenting shareholders being those shareholders who have not agreed to the proposal to vary the objects
of this Issue, our Promoters shall provide them with an opportunity to exit at such price, and in such
manner and conditions as may be specified by the SEBI, in respect to the same. Further, any deviation
in utilization of net proceeds will be as per the applicable laws.

We have not commissioned an industry report for the disclosures made in the chapter titled "Industry
Overview" and has made disclosures on the basis of the data available on the internet and such data
has not been independently verified by us.

We have neither commissioned an industry report, nor sought consent from the quoted website source
for the disclosures which need to be made in the chapter titled "Industry Overview" of this Letter of
Offer. We have made disclosures in the said chapter on the basis of the relevant industry related data
available online for which relevant consents have not been obtained. We have not independently verified
such data. We cannot assure you that any assumptions made are correct or will not change and,
accordingly, our position in the market may differ from that presented in this Letter of Offer. Further,
the industry data mentioned in this Letter of Offer or sources from which the data has been collected are
not recommendations to invest in our Company. Accordingly, investors should read the industry related
disclosure in this Letter of Offer in this context.

Our Company has not paid any dividends in the past three years, and we may not be able to pay
dividends in the future.

Our Company has not declared dividends for last three financial year and our Company may not be able
to declare dividends in the future. The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends is subject
to the discretion of the Board and Shareholders, and will depend upon various factors, inter alia, our
earnings, financial position, capital expenditures and availability of profits, restrictive covenants in our
financing arrangements and other prevailing regulatory conditions from time to time. Any of these factors
may thus restrict our ability to pay dividends in the future. If we are unable to pay dividends in the future.
realization of a gain on Shareholders’ investments will depend on the appreciation of the price of the
Equity Shares. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will appreciate.

We may be unable to enforce our rights under some of our agreements on account of inadequate
stamping and not registering the agreements or other reasons.

We have entered into certain agreements with third parties, in relation to our business, leasing of
immovable properties among others. The terms, tenure and the nature of the agreements vary, depending
on, amongst other things, the subject matter of the agreement and the third parties involved. For instance,
the lease deed entered by and between the Sankalp Trust and our Company dated December 1, 2021, for
the registered office our Company is inadequately stamped. Although, we endeavor to duly execute our
documents, some of the documents executed by us may be inadequately stamped or not registered or
may not otherwise be enforceable. Such inadequately stamped or unregistered documents may not be
admissible in evidence in a court of law until the applicable stamp duty, with penalty, has been paid and
registered, which could, therefore, impact our ability to enforce our rights under the agreement in timely
manner or at all.
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Our Company will not distribute this Letter of Offer and Application Form to certain overseas
Shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of documents.

Our Company will dispatch this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Rights Entitlement Letter
and Application Form (the "Offering Materials") to such Shareholders who have provided an address
in India for the service of documents. The Offering Materials will not be distributed to addresses outside
India on account of restrictions that apply to the circulation of such materials in various overseas
jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act requires companies to serve documents at any address, which
may be provided by the members as well as through e- mail. Presently, there is a lack of clarity under the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules thereunder, with respect to the distribution of Offering Materials to
retail individual shareholders in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under
applicable laws of such jurisdictions.

SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020, July 24, 2020, January
19, 2021 and April 22, 2021 and October 1, 2021 streamlined the process of rights issues. You should
follow the instructions carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars and in this Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
has recently been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has
been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to
exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22, 2020,
May 6,2020, July 24,2020, January 19,2021 and April 22, 2021, October 1, 2021 and ensure completion
of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner.
For details, please refer to " Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 145.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights
Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in
dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account (namely, "LIIPL DSJ KEEP LEARNING
RIGHTS ESCROW DEMAT ACCOUNT") opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity
Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat
suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held
in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are
frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date;
or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares
currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form
("Physical Shareholder") may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to
the Registrar.

In accordance with the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the
credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only.
Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow
de-mat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are
requested to furnish the details of their de-mat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their de-mat accounts
at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who
do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior
to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018 issued
by the SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless
the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or transposition of
Equity Shares).
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Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without
compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding.

Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and
become null and void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The
proportionate ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail
(or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your
unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully
compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our Company
that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in
completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are
credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the
Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will
not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements. For details, please refer to
"Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 145.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our
Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members
of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception
by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity
Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity
Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur may
significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoter and
Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity
shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment
of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares
held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on
which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a
period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising
from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases
where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a
resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a
result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on
gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares.

You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date
on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk.

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the
depository participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading
such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be
no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that
trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market
risk for such period.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares
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will not be granted by the Stock Exchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted.
Approval will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted.
There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges. Any failure or delay
in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical
trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the
future which may adversely impact the ability of our shareholders to sell the Equity Shares or the price
at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares at that point of time.

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian
law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-
emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing
ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have
been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on
such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights.
However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive
rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in
such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing.
We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by
Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of
the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely
affect the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchange. Any dividends in
respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the
relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates
during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign
investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating
outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory
approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity
shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated
substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of
our operating results.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTOR

38.

Significant differences exist between Ind AS, Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as
US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), which investors may be more
familiar with and consider material to their assessment of our financial condition.

Summary statements of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and summary statements of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity for the Fiscals 2023 have
been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Ind AS Rules and, the SEBI Circular and the Prospectus Guidance
Note.

We have not attempted to quantify the impact of US GAAP, IFRS or any other system of accounting
principles on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our
financial statements to those of US GAAP, IFRS or any other accounting principles. US GAAP and IFRS
differ in significant respects from Ind AS and Indian GAAP. Accordingly, the degree to which the
Financial Information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Ind AS, Indian GAAP and the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial
disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited.
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Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

The Indian economy is influenced by economic developments in other countries. These factors could
depress economic activity which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business and future
financial performance.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance,
growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health
of the economy in which we operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional
and global economies.

Economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty
and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural
production.

Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation
policies could adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general
and our business in particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without
proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.

We are incorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are
highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are
significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy
could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets,
and our ability to implement our strategy.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may include:
3 any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation;

any scarcity of credit or other financing in India;

prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations;

changes in India’s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies;

political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or
globally, including in India’s various neighboring countries;

prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and

3 other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility
in global commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in
turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of
corporate and tax laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such
changes, including the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any
such changes in applicable law and policy.

The Government of India has issued a notification dated September 29, 2016 notifying Income
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Computation and Disclosure Standards ("ICDS"), thereby creating a new framework for the computation
of taxable income. The ICDS became applicable from the assessment year for Fiscal 2018 and subsequent
years. The adoption of ICDS is expected to significantly alter the way companies compute their taxable
income, as ICDS deviates from several concepts that are followed under general accounting standards,
including Indian GAAP and Ind AS. In addition, ICDS shall be applicable for the computation of income
for tax purposes but shall not be applicable for the computation of income for minimum alternate tax.
There can be no assurance that the adoption of ICDS will not adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

. the General Anti Avoidance Rules ("GAAR") have been made effective from April 1, 2017.
The tax consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result in
denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the
subject, the application of these provisions is uncertain. If the GAAR provisions are made
applicable to our Company, it may have an adverse tax impact on us.

. a comprehensive national GST regime that combines taxes and levies by the Central and State
Governments into a unified rate structure, which came into effect from July 1, 2017. We cannot
provide any assurance as to any aspect of the tax regime following implementation of the GST.
Any future increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of companies
operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable. If, as a result
of'a particular tax risk materializing, the tax costs associated with certain transactions are greater
than anticipated, it could affect the profitability of such transactions.

In addition, unfavorable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules
and regulations including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations and group structure
could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws or may require us to apply for
additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such
new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any
failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in
the applicability, interpretation, or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law,
regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial
precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our
current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

Any increase in taxes and levies, or the imposition of new taxes and levies in the future, could increase
the cost of production and operating expenses. Taxes and other levies imposed by the central or state
governments in India that affect our industry include customs duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax
and other taxes, duties or surcharges introduced on a permanent or temporary basis from time to time.
The central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. Any
adverse changes in any of the taxes levied by the central or state governments may adversely affect our
competitive position and profitability.

Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions
in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe,
the United States and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country
can have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other countries. A loss in investor confidence
in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in in the Indian
economy in general. Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit conditions
in the U.S. market, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may
occur again and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries. This
includes, but is not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and certain economies in Asia.
Financial turmoil in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy.
Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and,
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directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging
economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in
other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions in the future could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity
disruptions and market corrections.

There are concerns that a tightening of monetary policy in emerging markets and some developed
markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such developments, legislators and
financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a
number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-
term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is
uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant financial disruption
in the future could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business, future financial
performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial
condition.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase
in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other
expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our
costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on
to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial
condition. We might not be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass the increase in costs on
to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition
may be adversely affected.

Further, the GOI has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is
unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation
levels will not worsen in the future.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability
to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies,
including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources and
hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing
indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without
onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth,
results of operations and financial condition.

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between
non- residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are
sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or
fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required.
Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into
foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance
certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the
RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise
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financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings international debt by international rating agencies may
adversely affect our ability to raise additional overseas financing and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on
our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our
business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes,
fires, explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military
actions, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. In addition,
any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring countries, may
result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the price of the Equity
Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible that
future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have an
adverse effect on our business.

Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a
higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity
Shares.

We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond
our control.

We are incorporated in India and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India.
Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance will be affected by interest rates,
government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic
developments affecting India.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations may include:

3 any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right
to convert or repatriate currency or export assets;

. any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic
conditions in India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;

. prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

. epidemic or any other public health in India or in countries in the region or globally, including
in India’s various neighboring countries;

3 hostile or war like situations with the neighboring countries;

3 macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates
movements which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing
costs;

3 decline in India's foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

. downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by rating agencies; and

. difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially
acceptable terms and/or a timely basis.

. Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the

Indian economy or certain regions in India, could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition and the price of the Equity Shares.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on November 10,
2023, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act. The terms and conditions of the Issue including the
Rights Entitlement, Issue Price, Record Date, timing of the Issue and other related matters, have been approved
by a resolution passed by the Board of Directors/ Rights Issue Committee at its meeting held on May 08, 2024.
The following is a summary of the Issue, and it should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified entirely by,
the information set out in the chapter titled "Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 145.

Particulars
Rights Equity Shares
proposed to be issued
Rights Entitlement

Fractional Entitlement

Record Date
Face Value per Equity Share

Issue Price per Rights Equity
Shares
Issue Size

Dividend

Details of Equity Shares
6,81,24,036 Equity Shares

7 Equity Shares for every 9 fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the
Record Date

For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the
shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 9
Equity Shares or is not in multiples of 9, the fractional entitlement of
such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored for computation of
the Rights Entitlement. However, Eligible Equity Sharcholders whose
fractional entitlements are being ignored earlier will be given preference
in the Allotment of one additional Equity Share each, if such Eligible
Equity Shareholders have applied for additional Equity Shares over and
above their Rights Entitlement, if any

May 14, 2024

X1 each

21 per Equity Share

6,81,24,036 Equity Shares of face value of X1 each for cash at a price
of %1 per Rights Equity Share aggregating up to ¥681.24 Lakhs*
*Assuming full subscription, to be adjusted as per the Rights Entitlement
ratio

Such dividend as may be declared by our Board and our shareholders,
as per applicable laws

Equity Shares issued, subscribed 8,75,88,047 Equity Shares. For details, please refer to "Capital
and paid up prior to the Issue Structure" beginning on page 42.

Equity Shares subscribed and 15,57,12,083" Equity Shares

paid-up after the Issue (assuming *Assuming full subscription

full subscription for and allotment

of the Rights Entitlement)

Equity Shares outstanding after 15,57,12,083" Equity Shares

the Issue (assuming full *Assuming full subscription

subscription for and Allotment of

the Rights Entitlement)

Scrip Details ISIN: INE055C01020
NSE: KEEPLEARN
BSE: 526677

ISIN for Rights Entitlements INE055C20012

Use of Issue Proceeds For details, please refer to "Objects of the Issue" beginning on page 45.
For details, please refer to "Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 145.

For details, please refer to "Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 145.

Terms of the Issue
Terms of Payment

Please refer to the chapter titled "Terms of the Issue" on page 145.

Issue Schedule
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The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking
hours on the dates mentioned below:

Issue Opening Date May 29, 2024
Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights™ June 03, 2024
Issue Closing Date” June 06, 2024

“The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time
to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date.

“Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the
Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as “Dalal Street Communications Private Limited” on November 21, 1989, under
the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Subsequently, our Company was converted
into a public limited company and the name of our Company was changed to "Dalal Street Communications
Limited" vide special resolution dated March 22, 1994 and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent to the
conversion was granted to our Company on June 14, 1994, by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Subsequently,
our Company changed its name to 'DSJ Communications Limited' and a fresh certificate of incorporation
consequent to the name change was granted to our Company on July 14, 1995, by the Registrar of Companies,
Mumbai. Further, our Company’s name was again changed its name to 'DSJ Keep Learning Limited' and a fresh
certificate of incorporation consequent to the name change was granted to our Company on June 29, 2021, by the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

Registered Office of our Company

DSJ Keep Learning Limited

419-A, Arun Chambers, 4™ Floor

Tardeo, Mumbai City

Mumbai 400034

Maharashtra, India

Tel: 022 40023127

Website: https://dsjkeeplearning.com/
Email: compliance@dsjkeeplearning.com

Corporate Identity Number: L80100MH1989PLC054329

Registration Number: 054329

Address of the Registrar of Companies

Our Company is registered with the RoC, Mumbai, which is situated at the following address:

Registrar of Companies, Mumbai
100, Everest,

Marine Drive,

Mumbai 400002, Maharashtra

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Jaiprakash Gangwani

419-A, Arun Chambers, 4™ Floor

Taredo, Mumbai City

Mumbai 400034

Mabharashtra, India

Telephone: 022 40023127

E-mail: compliance@dsjkeeplearning.com

Statutory Auditors of our Company

M/s Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP

422, Arun Chambers,

Taredo, Mumbai 400034

Telephone: +91 02266602417

E-mail: info@jdaca.com

Peer Review Number: 013761

Firm Registration Number: 121142W//\W100122
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Registrar to the Issue

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West

Mumbai-400083, Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 810 811 4949

Fax: +91 22 4918 6060

E-mail: keeplearning.rights2024@linkintime.co.in

Investor Grievance ID: keeplearning.rights2024@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Contact Person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan

SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-
Issue or post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar
to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB, giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s),
e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Rights Equity Shares
applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the
Application Form, or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with
a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. For details on the ASBA process, please see "Terms of the Issue-
Making of an Application through the ASBA process" on page 156.

Banker(s) to the Issue

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Kotak Infiniti, 6™ Floor, Building No. 21
Infinity Park, Off Western Express Highway
General AK Vaidya Marg, Malad (East)
Mumbai — 400 097

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 6605 6588

E-mail: cmsipo@kotak.com

Investor Grievance ID: cmsipo@kotak.com
Website: www.kotak.com

Contact Person: Siddhesh Shirodkar, Associate Vice President
SEBI Registration No.: INBI00000927

Designated Intermediaries
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs or the SBA Process is provided at the website
of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to
time. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, refer to the website of the
SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. On allotment, the amount will
be unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity Shares
Allotted.

Registered Brokers

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/14/2012 dated October 04, 2012 and
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, Applicants can submit Application Forms with the
Registered Brokers at the Broker Centers, CDPs at Designated CDP Locations or the RTAs at the Designated
RTA Locations, respective lists of which, including details such as address and telephone numbers, are available
at the websites of the BSE at www.bseindia.com and NSE at www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

39


mailto:keeplearning.rights2024@linkintime.co.in
mailto:keeplearning.rights2024@linkintime.co.in
file:///E:/Downloads/www.linkintime.co.in
mailto:cmsipo@kotak.com
mailto:cmsipo@kotak.com
http://www.kotak.com/
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the websites of Stock Exchanges at
https://www1.nseindia.com/products/content/equities/ipos/asba_procedures.htm and
https://www.bseindia.com/Static/Markets/Publiclssues/RtaDp.aspx?expandable=6 , as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as
name and contact details, are provided on the websites of Stock Exchanges.

Issue Schedule

May 28, 2024
May 29, 2024
June 3, 2024

June 6, 2024

June 13, 2024
June 14, 2024
June 19, 2024
June 20, 2024

“Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the
Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

*Our Board, or a duly authorized committee thereof, will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but
not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be
permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date
have not provided details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they must provide their
demat account details to our Company or the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing
Date, i.e., June 04, 2024 to enable credit of the Rights Entitlements to their respective demat accounts by transfer
from the demat suspense escrow account, which will happen one day prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., June
05, 2024. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which
have been provided to our Company or the Registrar, is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. Eligible
Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form can update the details of their demat accounts on the
website of the Registrar at www.linkintime.co.in. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an application
only after the Rights Entitlements are credited to their respective demat accounts.

Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our
Company or the Registrar will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Application Forms on
or before the Issue Closing Date. It is encouraged that the Application Forms are submitted well in advance before
the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Application Forms, please refer to "Terms of the Issue -
Procedure for Application™ beginning on page 154.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholder may be accessed by such
respective Eligible Equity Shareholder on the website of the Registrar at www.linkintime.co.in after keying in
their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat. For further details, please
refer to "Terms of the Issue - Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders"
beginning on page 148.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before
the Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing
Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements
were purchased from the market and the purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements.
Persons who receive credit of the Rights Entitlements must make an Application to subscribe to the Equity Shares
offered under the Rights Issue.
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Credit Rating

This is an issue of Equity Shares; credit rating is, therefore, not required.

Debenture Trustees

This is an issue of Equity Shares; the appointment of Debenture trustees is, therefore, not required.
Monitoring Agency

The Net Proceeds of the Issue will be less than 310,000 Lakhs. The SEBI ICDR Regulations does not mandate
appointment of a monitoring agency for such issues. Our Company will, therefore, not appoint a monitoring
agency.

Expert

Our Company has received written consent from its Statutory Auditors, to include their name as required under
Section 26(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in this Letter of Offer and as an "expert" as defined under Section 2(38)
of the Companies Act, 2013, in their capacity as the Statutory Auditors and in respect of their: (i) audit report
relating to the Audited Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 and (ii) limited review
report related to the Unaudited Financial Results as at and for the nine months ended on December 31, 2023. Such
consent has not been withdrawn as at the date of this Letter of Offer. However, the term "expert" and "consent"
shall not be construed to mean an "expert" or "consent" as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

Our Company has received written consent from Statutory Auditor, to include their name in this Letter of Offer,
as an "expert"” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Statement of Possible
Special Tax Benefits dated January 17, 2024 available to our Company and its Shareholders, issued by them in
their capacity as an independent chartered accountant to our Company and such consent has not been withdrawn
as at the date of this Letter of Offer

Underwriting Agreement

This issue is not underwritten.

Minimum Subscription

The minimum subscription to be received in the Issue shall be atleast ninety per cent of the offer through the offer
document. In the event of non-receipt of minimum subscription, all application monies received shall be refunded
to the Applicants / ASBA account unblocked forthwith, but not later than four days from the closure of the Rights
Issue, in compliance with Pursuant to regulation 86(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Appraising Entity

The objects of this Issue have not been appraised by any bank or any other independent financial institution or
any other independent agency.
Filing

This Letter of Offer will be filed with the BSE and NSE. Since the size of this Issue falls below the threshold of
filing of Letter of Offer for rights issues with SEBI which is Rupees five thousand lakhs, this Letter of Offer shall
not be filed with SEBI. However, this Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for information and
dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of our Company, as at the date of this Letter of Offer, and details of the Equity Shares proposed
to be issued in the Issue, and the issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital after the Issue, are set forth below:

(in 3, except shares data)

18,00,00,000 Equity Shares of X1 each 18,00,00,000 -
15,000 14% Non-Cum Redeemable Preference Shares 15,00,000

of T 100 each.

5,00,000 10% Cumulative Convertible Preference 50,00,000

shares of ¥ 10 each

8,75,88,047 Equity Shares of 21 each” 8,75,88,047 -
9,000 14% Non-Cum Redeemable Preference Shares of 9,00,000 -
% 100 each

Total 8,84,88,047

6,81,24,036 Equity Shares, each at a price of I1 per 6,81,24,036 6,81,24,036
Equity Share

15,57,12,083 Equity Shares of 1 each, fully paid up* ® 15,57,12,083 15,57,12,083
Before the Issue 39,917,0859
After the Issue® 39,917,0859

* The MCA portal reflects the total paid up capital as 8,27,03,000 equity shares and Preference shares wherein <57,85,000 were call in
arrears till June 30, 2023. According to the confirmation received from Link Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent of the Company, all outstanding equity shares of the Company, totaling to 8,75,88,047 of Z1/- each are fully paid up (Further there is
a discrepancy in equity paid up capital of 47 for which Company has filed an XBRL form AOC-4 and due to the rounding of the in the form
there is discrepancy of 47 ). Therefore, the amount of ¥57,85,000/- (Rupees Fifty -Seven Lakhs Eighty- Five Thousand only) shown as calls
in upto the quarter ended June 30, 2023 have been adjusted against the Capital reserves as at September 30, 2023.

#To be updated upon finalisation of the Issue Price.

(MThe Issue has been authorised by our Board pursuant to a resolution dated November 10, 2023. The terms of the Issue, including the Record
Date and Rights Entitlement Ratio, have been approved by a resolution passed by our Board/Rights Issue Committee at their meeting held
on May 08, 2024.

@ Assuming full subscription for, and Allotment of, the Equity Shares. Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment, Allotment and deduction
of Issue related expenses.

Notes to the Capital Structure
1. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Except for Pratap Vijay Padode, our Promoters, Sanjay Vijaysingh Padode, New Bonanza Impex Private
Limited and other Promoter Group entities vide their letters dated January 13, 2024, have confirmed their
intention to partially subscribe to the portion of their Rights Entitlement, jointly and/or severally and not
to renounce their Rights Entitlements except to the extent of renunciation within themselves and our
Promoter Rajesh Vijay Padode vide his letter dated April 12, 2024, has confirmed his intention that he
may partially subscribe to the portion of his Rights Entitlement. Further, one of the members of our
Promoter Group namely, DSJ Finance Corporation Limited is under liquidation since 1998 and thus we
are not in a position to obtain its intention regarding subscription to the Rights Issue.

Our Promoters and Promoter Group reserve the Right to apply for, and subscribe to, additional Rights
Equity Shares, including subscribing to the unsubscribed portion (if any) of the Issue, subject to
compliance with the minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR and the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Further, our Company had entered into a Loan Agreement dated September 10, 2021, with New Bonanza

42



Impex Private Limited (“NBIPL”), pursuant to the said agreement, as at December 31, 2023, our
Company has availed an amount of ¥ 191.22 lacs as unsecured loan from NBIPL. As certified by the
Chartered Accountant, Jayesh Dadia and Associates LLP as on December 31, 2023, the balance of loan
outstanding (including interest) was X191.22 lacs. In accordance with the clause no 4 of the Loan
Agreement, the lender shall have right to convert the loan into equity shares of our Company and based
on the request letter dated January 24, 2024 received from NBIPL, subject to the successful completion
of the Issue and receipt of necessary approvals (including the listing and trading approval from the Stock
Exchanges), our Company proposes to convert the outstanding amount of unsecured Loan into equity
and accordingly, to the extent of , the subscription by NBIPL to its entitlement in the Rights issue and
subscription to the unsubscribed portion of the rights issue, NBIPL will be issued equity shares of our
Company. Consequently, no proceeds from the Issue to such extent, would be received by our Company
and corresponding amount will get adjusted towards subscription of equity shares in rights issue.

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above its
Rights Entitlements shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company and shall
be in compliance with the SEBI SAST Regulations. Further, Our Company is in compliance with
Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public
shareholding requirements under the Applicable Law.

The ex-rights price of the Equity Shares offered pursuant to this Issue and in compliance with the
valuation formula set out in Regulation 10(4)(b)(ii) of the Takeover Regulations is ¥3.05 per Equity
Share.

Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchange, in compliance
with the provisions of the SEBI LODR Regulations:

() The shareholding pattern of our Company, as on March 31, 2024, may be accessed on the
website of the NSE and BSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-
shareholding-pattern?symbol=KEEPLEARN&tabIndex=equity and

https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/dsj-keep-learning-
Itd/keeplearn/526677/shareholding-pattern/ respectively.

(i) A statement as on March 31, 2024, showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to
the category of "Promoter and Promoter Group", including details of lock-in, pledge and
encumbrance thereon, may be accessed on the website of the NSE and BSE at
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=KEEPL EARN&tablndex=equity and
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=526677&qtrid=121.
00&QtrName=March%202024 respectively.

(iii) A statement as on March 31, 2024, showing holding of securities (including Equity Shares,
warrants, convertible securities) of persons belonging to the category "Public", including equity
shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares, as well as details of
shares which remain unclaimed may be accessed on the website of the NSE and BSE at
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=KEEPL EARN&tablndex=equity and
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=526677&qtrid=121
.00&0QtrName=March%202024 respectively.

Details of shares locked-in, pledged, encumbrance by Promoters and Promoter Group:

The details of shares locked-in, pledged and encumbered by the Promoters and Promoter Group may be
accessed on the website of the NSE and BSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-
filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=KEEPLEARN&tabIndex=equity and
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=526677&qtrid=121.00&Qtr
Name=March%202024 respectively.

Our Company shall ensure that any transaction in the Equity Shares by the Promoters and the Promoter
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10.

11.

Group during the period between the date of filing this Letter of Offer and the date of closure of the Issue
shall be reported to the Stock Exchanges within 24 hours of such transaction.

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company.

Details of specified securities acquired by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the last one year
immediately preceding the date of filing of the Letter of Offer

Neither of our Promoters nor our Promoter Group have acquired any securities in the last one year,
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer.

Details of outstanding securities of our Company
As on date of this Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding options or convertible securities, including
any outstanding warrants or rights to convert debentures, loans or other instruments convertible into our

Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of Offer.

All the Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares on
the date of this Letter of Offer.

Further, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Rights Issue, shall be fully paid up.
No person connected with the Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner,

whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise to any Investor for making an application in the rights
issue, except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation to the Issue.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Our Company proposes to utilize the proceeds of the Issue towards the following objects:

1. Repayment or pre-payment, in full or in part, of unsecured loan availed by our Company from our
Promoter Group Entity

2. Meet cost of Software development expenses

3. Meet cost of Program Delivery & Management Services

4. General Corporate Purpose

(collectively, referred to as the "Objects")

Our Memorandum of Association enables us to pursue our existing activities, and the activities for which the
funds are being raised by our Company in the Issue.

Net Proceeds from the Issue
(< in Lakhs)

Gross Proceeds from the Issue™ 681.24
Less: Issue Related Expense™ 59.64
Net Proceeds from the Issue 621.60

* Assuming full subscription and Allotment of the Rights Entitlement.

"See "Estimated Issue Related Expenses” on page 47.

#If there is any reduction in the amount on account of or at the time of finalization of Issue Price and Rights Entitlements Ratio, the same will
be adjusted against General Corporate Purpose.

Requirement of funds & Means of finance
The proposed utilization of the Net Proceeds is set forth below:

r in Lakhs)

Repayment or prepayment, in full or in part, of unsecured Loan

1 availed by our Company from our Promoter Group Entity 190.00
2. Meet cost of software development expenses 210.00
3. Meet cost of program delivery & management services 190.00
4 General Corporate Purpose” 31.60

Total 621.60

*Subject to the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares. The amount utilised for general corporate purposes shall
not exceed 25% of the Proceeds of the rights issue.

The funding requirements mentioned above are based on our Company’s internal management estimates and have
not been appraised by any bank, financial institution or any other external agency. They are based on present
circumstances of our business and our Company may have to revise these estimates from time to time on account
of various factors beyond our control, such as market conditions, competitive environment, or interest rate
fluctuations etc. The fund requirements set out in the Objects of the Issue are proposed to be met entirely from the
Proceeds of the Rights Issue and internal accruals. Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no
requirement to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated
means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from the Issue as required under SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Proposed schedule of implementation and deployment of funds

Our Company proposes to deploy the entire net proceeds towards the Objects as described herein during Fiscal
2024-2025 and Fiscal 2025-2026 as given below:-




Repayment or prepayment, in full or in part, of 190.00 190.00 -
unsecured Loan availed by our Company from
our Promoter Group Entity

2. Meet cost of software development expenses 210.00 105.00 105.00

3. Meet cost of program delivery & management 190.00 95.00 95.00
services

4. General Corporate Purpose” 31.60 15.8 15.8

Total 621.60 405.80 215.80

*Subject to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares. The amount utilized for general corporate purposes shall
not exceed 25% of the Proceeds of the rights issue.

Details of the objects of the Issue

1.

Repayment or pre-payment, in full or in part, of unsecured Loan availed by our Company from
our Promoter Group Entity

Our Company has entered into a Loan Agreement with New Bonanza Impex Private Limited (NBIPL) ,
our Promoter Group Entity dated September 10, 2021 to avail unsecured Loan of up to % 50,000,000/-
(Rupees Five Cores Only). Pursuant to the said agreement, as at December 31, 2023, our Company has
availed an amount of ¥ 191.22 lacs as unsecured loan from NBIPL. As certified by the Chartered
Accountant, Jayesh Dadia and Associates LLP as on 31% December 2023 the balance of loan outstanding
(including interest) was ¥191.22 lacs. In accordance with the clause no 4 of the Loan Agreement, the
lender shall have right to convert the loan into equity shares of our Company and based on the request
letter dated 24™ January 2024 received from NBIPL, subject to the successful completion of the Issue
and receipt of necessary approvals (including the listing and trading approval from the Stock Exchanges),
our Company proposes to convert the outstanding amount of unsecured Loan into equity and
accordingly, to the extent of, the subscription by NBIPL to its entitlement in the Rights issue and
subscription to the unsubscribed portion of the rights issue, NBIPL will be issued equity shares of our
Company. Consequently, no proceeds from the Issue to such extent, would be received by our Company
and corresponding amount will get adjusted towards subscription of equity shares in rights issue.

New September Payable Meeting 3 %191.22 8% 190.00
Bonanz 10, 2021 on working 500,00,00
a Impex Deman  Capital 0 (rupees
Private d requiremen  five
Limited t hundred
lakhs).

To meet the cost of Software development

Our Company proposes to launch a mobile application for educational institutes to automate the entire
education system from admissions to results, time-table, faculty mapping, announcements, project work,
assignment submissions, etc. We have already developed the base model and are in the product testing
phase with the education institutes that are our existing customers. We propose to incorporate the use of
generative Al in the application, towards which a specialist team is required to be hired.

Our company proposes to fund the expenses towards hiring and other expenses towards the kOS product
from the proceeds of the rights issue. Our primary costs are towards hiring cost of people for the
development team. We would also work with an external development agency for specialised tasks on
the product. We propose to hire 6 developers and 2 Quality Assurance engineers for testing the
application. Since we are building mature products, we require senior developers with a minimum of 4 -
5 years of work experience and Senior Quality Assurance engineers with a minimum of 6 years of work
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experience. The average market rate of such developers are close to 220 Lakhs per annum and engineers
close to %15 Lakhs per annum

The kOS Mobile App shall also involve services of external vendor, the cost of which is estimated around
T 15 lakhs. (work for this has already commenced with the vendor and will be completed in the next 6
months). The vendor is a software company based in Chennai. We require software licenses, software
development tools and testing tools which is estimated to cost around %5 lakhs. We would also incur cost
of around 40 lakhs towards marketing of the products These expenses would be deployed over a period
of 12 months.

Our development tool stack has a lot of automation in it, for which we require specialized tools. Some
of the tools we need licensing money for includes IntelliJ, Github copilot, Postman API, Sonarlint for
static code analysis and other CI/CD tools for deployment. The total cost of these tools for the full year
cost around 5 Lakhs

We would also incur costs of around X 40 lakhs towards marketing of the products. These expenses
would be deployed over a period of 12 months. These includes conference registration expenses, travel
reimbursements, marketing collaterals like brochures and daily allowances for our travelling sales team.
Detailed breakup of these expenses is given below.

Conference Registration Fee (Both India & Global) 325.00
Travel & Stay Allowance (Flights/Hotels) %10.00
Marketing Collaterals (Brochures/welcome Kkits) %5.00
Total 240.00
The details of the total expense are tabulated as under:
1 Salaries payable to the Developer Team 120.00
2 Salaries payable to the Quality Assurance engineers Team 30.00
3 Cost of service of external vendor for the kOS Mobile App 15.00
4 Purchase of software licenses 5.00
5 Expenses towards marketing team 40.00
Total 210.00

Meet Cost of Program Delivery & Management Services

To build upon our program delivery and management services, our Company is proposing to convert the
offline management programs, of one of our customers, JAGSoM, and deliver it into online format. Towards
this purpose, we propose the following:

. Setup of a 10-person inside sales calling center, along with one business unit head and one sales
manager over the course of the next twelve months. The average cost of a inside’s sales
executive with 1 — 2 years of experience is about X 3.6 Lakhs a year. The average cost of a sales
manager with 4— 5 years of experience is about X 8 Lakhs a year. The average cost of a Business
Unit head with 4 — 5 years of experience X 16 Lakhs a year. Therefore, the total cost of the team
for the next twelve months comes up to X 60 Lakhs.

. Setup of a 6-person marketing team, which consists of one head of marketing and various
managers and executives for running all digital marketing activities. The average salaries of
marketing executives with 2 — 3 years of experience comes to about ¥ 8 Lakhs a year, and the
average cost of a marketing head with about 5 - 7 years of experience is about X 20 Lakhs a
year.

. Provide branding expenses towards building the brand and its visibility and generate leads for
the program. For this, we will be employing digital platforms like Meta, Instagram, LinkedIn &
Google Ads. We have laid out an elaborate plan that involves a lot of ATL (Above the line) &
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BTL (Below the line advertisement) activities, for which a budget of X 70 Lakhs a year has been
created. A breakup of the actual cost expenditure across all mediums is given below.
Deployment of these funds is determined monthly, due to the evolving nature of the market and
advertising mediums. This will be determined by the marketing head, in tandem with the
business unit head of the whole team.

Print Advertisement Expenses (throughout the 325.00
year)

Lead Generation Expenses — Meta %10.00
Lead Generation Expenses — Google Ad Service %10.00
Affiliate Lead Generation Expenses 35.00
Influencer Budget %10.00
Video Production Agency Services 35.00
Website Development & Design 35.00
Total %70.00

The details of the expense are tabulated as under:

Salaries payable to sales calling centre 60.00
personnel along with one business unit head
and one sales manager

2. Expenses towards marketing team 60.00
3. Branding expenses 70.00
Total 190.00
4, Issue Expenses
The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Advisor to the issue, processing fee to the
SCSBs, Registrars to the Issue, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous expenses
for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately I
59.64 Lakhs towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows:
(< in Lakhs)
Feepayabletothe Advisors 2390 4007 351
Fee payable to the Registrar 10.92 18.32 1.60
Fee payable to regulators, including 16.39 27.48 241
depositories, Stock Exchanges and SEBI
Advertising, marketing expenses, Printing 493 8.26 0.72
and distribution of issue stationery etc.
Other miscellaneous expenses 3.50 5.87 0.51
Total estimated issue expenses” 59.64 100.00 8.75
“Includes applicable taxes.
5. General corporate purposes

In terms of Regulation 62 (2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Issue Proceeds proposed
to be used for general corporate purposes shall not be exceeding 25% of the Gross proceeds of the Issue.
Our Board will have flexibility in applying certain amount towards general corporate purposes, funding
our growth opportunities, including strategic initiatives, meeting expenses incurred in the ordinary course
of business, meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in course of business and any other
purpose as may be approved by the Board or a duly appointed committee from time to time, subject to



compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act. Our management will have flexibility
in utilizing any amounts for general corporate purposes which shall be in compliance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulation and other laws, as may be applicable under the overall guidance and policies of our
Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the purposes will be determined by the Board
or its committee, based on the amount actually available under this head and the business requirements
of our Company, from time to time.

Strategic and/ or Financial Partners

There are no Strategic and Financial partners to the objects of the issue.

Appraisal

None of the Objects of the Issue have been appraised by any bank or financial institution.

Government Approval

There are no material pending government or regulatory approvals pertaining to the objects of the Issue.
Bridge Financing Facilities

We have not availed any bridge financing facilities for the meeting the expenses as stated under the
Obijects of the Issue.

Interim Use of Funds

The Issue Proceeds pending utilization for the objects described above shall be deposited with scheduled
commercial banks included in second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds

Our Board of Directors will monitor the utilization of the Issue Proceeds. The Company will disclose the
utilization of the Issue Proceeds under a separate head in our balance sheet along with the relevant details,
for all such amounts that have not been utilized. The Company will indicate investments, if any, of
unutilized Issue Proceeds in the Balance Sheet of the Company for the relevant Financial Years
subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall, on a quarterly basis,
disclose to the Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with
Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a
quarterly basis, a statement on material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue
from the objects of the Issue as stated above. This information will also be published in newspapers
simultaneously with the interim or annua